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Statement by Seumas Robinson.

Part I. 1903 - 1916.

There was a national tradition in my family back to
the time of both of my grandparents. My paternal
grandfather, a Fenian, escaped to France in 1867. The
family followed him later. Sane of the younger members
of the family ineluding my father, were born in France. .
The whole femily returned to Belfast some time before or
about 1870,

\ .
On the maternal side, a grand-uncle, also a Fe;nian,
escaped t©0 the T, S.A. No news of him since. His name
was Connolly, but I have no recollection of his christian
name, There was an atmosphere of hush-hueh on my mother's
slde of the family about this uncle. I think they were

worried sbout the Excammunications.

My paternal grandfather was, too, decidedly worried
about the Excammunications by the Bishops. My father once
told me that my grandfather accepted the Bishops' ruling
under protest. He had said that the Bishops' action was
morally wrong but unfortunately they have the power to
excanrmnicate the Fenians. To understand or better to
appreclate my grandfather's attitude in this, it is
necessary to point out that his whole young life had been
one long struggle to retain the Faith. His father (my
gr e at-grandfather) had been a Grand Master of the Orange
Order who married a saintly Catholic women and thought the
boys born to them should be brought up Protestants - he
didn't mind the girls being Catholics. There was just that

amount of hush-hush sbout this Protestant connection in our



a3

f

2.

family which prevented my getting more details asbout the

great-grandfather. However, he geems to have been national -

hﬂ; great many Protestants were in his day - and I belleve he |

hed same comnection with the movement in 179E.

To get back to my grandfather. I was told that he left
the Fenlans and then he swore he'd never shave again till
Ireland was free - he had a luxurious veard when I saw him

last. He was then sbout 84 years old and I 4.

iy parents were ordinary typical Catholic Hationalists
of their day. Thelr sympathy was with Parnell but couldn't
take sides against the Bishops. They had also become
eonvineed that the British Empire was invincible, They had
all the arguments against us young people. Then the '98
centenary celebrations set us youngsters agog and engulring.
Wle wanted to prepare for another Light but we were told not to
be foolish. Tt would be lovely if it could be done', we were
told "but your grandfathers failed and your great-grandfathers
feiled, all better men than you could ever hope to be, and
beslides England has become much stronger and 1s Just as
ruthlesa”. I think it was Joa; my brother, vho first pointed
out t0 me that we should be ashemed of our father's generation.
They were the first generation of Irishmen who had not struck
a blow for Ireland. A8 I have said, the arguments were all
on our parents’ side until the Boer iar. Heavena)! what
thrills we got out of that great struggle. Bonfires in the
streets on the news of a Boer victory, conplete disbeliel in
Boer reverseal The Irish Boer Brigade. How we wished we
were old enough to be with them! Yet all these years and for
many more the dark cloud of the Irish Bisghops' attitude hung

like a pall over every generous impulse to free our counitry.

The Jansen-cum-Gallicanism of the Irish Bishops kept me

perturbed. I knew Joe was an open militant Wationalist and

S
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an admirer of the Fenlans and didn't seem to De the least bit
worried sbout excammmnication: yet in those days he was an
ardent Catholic. At lest I assked him straight how he managed
to answer the Bishopsi™ "Render therefore to Caesar the things
that are Caesor's ..... * 7 His almost contemptuous reply to my
"childish guestion” (he seemed to think that only a simpledon
or a fool or & heretic didn't know the answer)was "when you give
$0 God the things that are God's, just tell me what is left for

Caesar?",

That was an eye—opener to me. Then, on ruminating over
the qQuestion, I began to gee the humour in Qur Lord's answer
as well as the 'cuteness. His enemies saw it and dare not
accuse Him of being in favour of Jewish slavery to Rame - which
ie vhat they would have done if the reply could with any show
of reason be made to appear like that. I remember once mary
years later dlscussing the attitude of later Bilshops on a
gimilar situation, seying as a sort of peroration,—

"St, Patrick mist be one of the greatest saints in Heaven
because he has kent the Faith unsullied among the ordinary
neople of Ireland in spite of the Bishops and the majority of
parish prieats'. All this may not be history in the opdinary
sense, but history cannot héﬂggzé;;i§dun&erstaod without some
appreciation of all that went to make up the psychology of the

people at any given time,

2 Belfast 19035.

My first definite contact with the national movement was
in 1903 when I joined the "Oscars" hurling c¢lub. This was one
of" the Fiamna hurlinz clubs started in Belfast Dy Bulmer Hobson
in, I bvelileve, 1902. There was' a4 number of such clubs but
I was too young to retain mmch detail\q ::lf-t-heir getivities or
membership. The only activity, apart from hurling, vhich
remains in ry mind is an attempt by Hobson to produce a play

written by him on Wolfe Tone. I cammoi remenber if the play
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wae ever produced. Of the members of these clube I can o=Edy

remmbe%}'a few - my brother Joseph, my cousin

4
Willie Robinson, John and Michael Clarke, William Flanagan,

and a boy named Ferris. With the meﬁtion of my brother
Joseph, I don't think any of them took much part in the
national movement in later years. My brother Joseph was the
first boy to join the Fianna, and as he is three years older
than I am, he will certainly have more recocllections of this
period than I have. There was a muiber of Proteataﬁt bhoys

in the movement then. Archie Heron is the only one I rememnber

_ by name. Joe did a bit of "proslytising" among Protestant

boys and has some funny stories about thelr dread of Rome.

Do Scotland and the I.R.B, 1903-191%.

The family were forced to emigrate to Scotland late 1n,
I believe, 1903, and I joined the Gaelic Lesgue slmost
immediately. I‘ camnot recollect the name of the Branch but
it had its premises inm Street, Glasgow. The only
teacher whose name I can remember there was a man named
Paddy Boyle from Donegal. He was very active in the Branch.
I understand he is still alive and residing scmewhere in
County Donegal. I left Glasgow very soon after and went to
gchool at St. Michael's, Dumfries. Ny contact with Glasguw.
from that until 1912 was merely on week-end wvisgits and
holideys. During these vlisits I kept in touch with the
Gaelic League.

4. 1915 - 1915.

The Irish Volunteers were fomed 1n Glasgow very shortly
after thelr formmation in Dublin. I cannot glve any detalls
of the formation, but my brother Joseph who was very asctive in
national affdire in Glasgow at this time, will certainly be
gble to give infomation on this point. My first contact with

the Irish Volunteers wae when I joined "A" Company at the
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Gaslic League Hall which was, I think, situated 1n London
Street. I did not "join" the Volunteers. formally - I was
taken, tock maraa_lf, for granted. Thig was some time about
December 1913, I attended for drill and paid m& subscription.
Same members of this Canpany whom I can remember are Sedn and
Seumas Lanigan, Seédn and Seumas Rice and soms members of what
later became known as the Kimmage Garrison to whom I shall
refer later. We were drilled by an ex soldler whose name

I cannot remember, I don't think I ever heard his name.

Apart from the ordinary foot drill I dld not take part
in any activities at this stage. The Flanna organisatlon in
Glasgow were very active in raiding munition factorles and
minea for explosives. Same of the boys in this group were,
Barney Priel, who still lives in Glasgow, Jeumas Reader, who
1g at present on the staff of Leinster House, Eemon Mooney,
B. O;W., Din Laoghaire, and my brother Joseph. They will be
sble to give detsile of the Flanna ectivities in Glasgow at
this time.

My brother always seemed anxious to keep me away from
militant activities. He had the idea that I should stay at
home to care for the old people, thus relieving him of . ..
anxiety and responsibility. I believe Joe himself was
prepared for a life of hardship and excitement with a hangman's
rope likely at the end. However, I had my own ideas but didn't
mention tham_ to :.‘ma. I wae always anxious to know how serious
the movement was and I learned by trial and error a method to
find out. The only way I could get Joe to talk was to throw
cold water on their bona-fides. Then he told me in so
positive, cool, matter-of-fact way that a fight would come off,
not only in our time, but very shortly, that I believed him,.

-~

1 prepared myself mentally and physically. 1 trained
myself to be miplq s0t muscle-bound, and I found my strength

increasing markedly. I learned to jump my own height -~ only
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5' 6" = but it was tough going, I learned to sprint with
gll my clothes on in short bursts of 20 to 30 yards. I learned
to shoot. My father had already taught me the theory of
shooting and Joe had an air-rifle from our Belfast days and
I took every opportunity of practlice at circus and show grounds
and at rifle ranges. I was. very proud the first time I hilt
the ball dancing on the water fountain. I became quite good
judging by what I saw round about me. . I dlscovered with
sscret delight that the average British Tormy was quite a poor
ahot. I may have been unfortunate in those I came across.
T héd gained a confidence that later experience showed was not
quite justified. *‘ff hadn't yet learned the need to be "quick
on the draw'; that one had t0 be either "the guick or the

dead".

angust 1914 the first blg war started. Conscription
came to Britain and Scotland. We had great hopes that the °
war would give us a good opportunity to strike. Conserlption =
On looking back now to those days I remember that none of us in
Glasgow was over perturbed. We were slmply not going to be
conscripted; yet there was no definite plan to deal with the
gltuation that I can remember, but that among ourselves we

decided to go on the run and get to Irsland.

Towards: the end of 1915 I began to notice a suppresaed
excltement smong the Fianna lads; they were holding their
heads high, becaming self-confident wilth an elated seriousness.
They were ralding continually for munitlons. This actlvity
increased as 1916 approached, The ralds had become glmost
"barefaced" - they had got away with so much for so long without
detection, = At last & sort of grend finalé was planned and
carried out at Uddington, I think it was, when a blg haul of
exploslves was captured. An exodus to Dublin of all
ablebodied Volunteers was to follow this. My knowledge of
these ralds was second-hand but my father's house was used as

one of many temporary depots and although not a word was
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ppoken t0 me sbout any particular raid I knew ihey were on.

Suddenly and unexpectedly (that is the only way I can
express the sensation at the time) my brother Joe was arrested.
That would be 17th or 18th Jamary, 1916, Seumas Reader was
arrested the following night. By an outstanding piece of good
luck the British Authorities had not till that moment suspected
the Irish Volunteers of being responsible for the raids. A8 8
matter of fact 1t was the Flanna and the I.R.B. who carried
them out. All had gone well for the Fianna until the last big
raid above referred to where the raiders in order %o conserve
space, threw away the wrappings. The wind scattered them round
the countryasilds. The public became aware of the rald and
London became alarmed and ordered the local police to acg or !
The 8cots: police were campletely at sea as to who wgs responsible)
their one and only suspicion was the anarchists. These
unfortunates had been harried, searched and followed from the
time the raiding had started, but, naturally, without resulis
to the police. In desperation the Scots Police Anthorities
called in Maguire and Hannilgan (the two Dublin Castle political
@ men appointed to watch the Irish in Scotland) for consultation.
Theae two fellows guessed immedlately who was behind the raids.
They set out to make two arrests. Joe was arrested that night
and Seumas Reader the next night. Reader and scme other
Volunteera had gone to Ireland a couple of days previously with
explosives and he was to have remained in Ireland for the
Riging. However, Sedn MeDermott sent him back urgently, armed,
and "sworn" to deliver two despatches, one to the Volunteers,
and one to the I.R.B. relating to plans for sending all able-
bodied men, especlelly those who had military experience to
Ireland.

Reader arrived in Glasgow and went straight to
Carmicheel's place (the son of the house was a Volunteer) and
was heving sanething to eat when the police arrived. Reader,

I believe, had not yet heard of Robinson's arrest. Reader had
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to think quickly. Sanething desperate had to be done, so he
jmpit:_ﬁﬂjf@hu;ting and made an ostentatious rush for his
revolver)which in the excitement, g0t stuck in the pocket.
The lady of the house knowing Reader, screamed, "Iurder,
marder!" "Don't shoot, don't shoot". The police rushed for
the door in panic and Reader sending the advantage, started to
¢lsm them. He told them they could arrest him if they let him
accept all the bleme as the people in the house were quite
Innocent. Reader then walked over to the coatSrack and put on
the wrong coat. In their anxlety to get off, the police rushed
him away t0 & magistrate. One need hardly say that everything
ineluding the two despatches was cleared out in a very few
mimitea after the crowd had left. The two despatches were

delivered and the munitions dumped elsewhere.

Reader was no sooner sgstanding before the magletrate than
that "magnate" noticed that the prisoner's coat was ruch too
large, UThat's not that young fellow's coat'. You've been
hoodwinked, get back at once and search the house". They dild,

this time armed with a search warrant.

So, there was not one bit of concrete evidence against
Reader. Joe Robinson, as I've sald, hed been arrested at his
hane the previous night. They had not a scintilla of evidence
against him either - all because Magulre and Hannligan wanted to
show off in front of the Scots Folice how smart they were.

Had they came prepared to search the two houses they would have
had quite enough evlidence and to spare.

These two Volunteérs were held for trisl on charges of
high treason. The trial never came off because we dlscovered
that elther Hannigan or Maguire had stolen a Trades Union card
belonging to Joe Robinson in a subesequent raid on hils home, and
which the Detectlve was prepared to swear had been plcked up in
a field near where the last raid had taken place. The Detectiw.
hadn't noticed that the date on the card was the same date as th:
raid Robinson was accused of. The card had been signed that de:
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in Belfast by a Trades Union official who was an Qrangerman.

Thus they dare not bring the case to eouri.

On realising the strength of our position I pressed
our solicitor, e kr. Orr of Hamilton, to demand a trial so
as 10 expose the perfidy of the Detectives. This was
turning the tables on them with a vengeance. From that
moment the inactivity on the matter by the British
Authorities was eloquent, T then urged the soliecitor to
institule Haebas Corpus proceedings) I was acting on the
old adage of "attack ies the best defence. Haebas Corpus
was refused, Wo trial, io release either. However,

I now felt Joe and Seunas were reasongbly safe and began
to think I might, with profit, glve a little thought to
myselfl.

5. 1916, Kimmage Garrison.

One evening about this time in the Gaslie—ieacue
Hall which was now the Wolunteer Drill Hell, I was
approached by Tom O'Donnell, the I,R.B. Centre, and invited
to join the Irish Republican Brotherhood. I was sworn
in on tne spot but never attended any meetings as
Toaa O'Donnell informed me that same evening that all young
men of military age were required in Ireland. This would
be around February 1916. I knew thial a group or groups
of men had already gone to Ireland, so0 as soon as I could
T left Glasgow with ‘five or six others for Dublin.
We arrived at the orth Wall and went direct to Lerkfield
House, Kimmage, where we became known as the Kimmage
Garrison. There were gbout fifsty or sixty men in this

Zroup. The names of the members are as follows :-
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Agnew, Arthur
Begley, David
Bolger, dJohn
Bolger, James
Bracken, Peadar
Breslins (2)
Carroll, John
Caldwell, Patrick
Garmichael, Andrew
Carlgan, Charles
Clineh, Patrick J.
Coghlan, Joseph (Jerry llalone)
Craven, Thamas
Daly, Denls

Daly, Liem
Dlekenson, Willism
Duffy, Joseph

- Friel, Bernard

Purlong, Andrew (deceased)
Gahan, Joseph

Goode, Alfred Joseph
Gleeson, Joseph

Gleeson, Martin

Hegarty, Sefn (deceased)
Horen, John (deceased)
Harling, John (deceased)
Kelly, Frank

King, George (deceased)
Eing, John -
King, Patrick
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Kerr, Niall (Junior) (deceased)
Eenngn, Gilbert

Keating, Con {deceased)
Iynch, Gilbert

Landy, Seumas (deceased)
Mcanlirfe, Garrett
MceDermott, Patrick
MeGallogly, John

McGallogly, Seumas (deceased)
MceGarvey, Mlchael

McGrath, Michael

MclMamus, Patrick

MeMullan, EBrdan

McNelve, Willlam

McMshon, Patrick

MeCarra,

Murphy, Michael

Maguire, Patrick J.

Maguire, Patrick (White)
Morrin, Patrick (deceased)
Molwihill, Michael (deceased)
Noonan, Ernest

Noonan, Seén

0'Braonéin, Seumas

0'Connor, John (Blimey)
O'Donnaghin, Seumaes. (deceased)
0'ponnchadha, Tomés
0'Donoghue, Patrick
0'Donoghue, Willlam
O0'Marchadha, Peadar
O'Reilly, Joseph

0'Shea, Michael

O0'Dowd, James

Murphy, Victor

Murphy, Michael
Plunkett, George , Officer-in-charge.
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Parr, Liem (deceased)
Robinson, Seumaa

Roche, Liem

Ryan, Laurence

Scullion, Frank

Scullion, Patrick (deceased)
Supple, PAdralg

gheehan, Donal (deceased)
Shortis, Patrick (deceased)
Thornton, Frank

Thornton, Hugh (deceaaed)
Thornton, Patrick (deceased)
Turner, Cormac

Walsh, Martin

Whelehan, Chriastopher
Ward, Gllbert

Fulong, Joseph

Purlong, Matthew (deceased)
Eerr, John

Kerr, Thanas

Vise, dJoseph

Egan, Joseph

D'Z_ﬁaary, David

0'Leary, Diarmuid
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discussion among us as to ways and means of taking action
azainst those who had been r-espc:nsi'ble- Tor the cancellation
of the mobilisation. George Plunkett, however, advised us

not to worry and to stand to.

7. FRaster londay.

On Haster Monday morning George Plunkeit's pre-occupied
demeanour had changed. He was wearving a.brbaﬁ?prouqlﬂonflﬂent
sinile and a sword! Ve were ordered by Flunkett to parade
with full equipment and hard ratﬁnna. We assembled in the
grounds, and gbout 11.15 without any indicatian a8 to U8 rank
and filers that the time Tor actlion had come, we were marched
to the Dolphin's Barn tram terminus and boarded a tram for the
city. Vie were, as far as I can recollect, sbout sixty strong.

We left the tram at College Green end marched to Liberty Hall.

Beresford Place was full of Citizen Army men and women.
Everything waa1bustle and excitement. We formed up in front
aq and our backs tquiberty Hall, and Mergaret Skinnider, whom
I knew, rushed ovaf to me and said "it's on". I asked, "what's
on?", She said, "the rebellion, of course'. This was the
first positive information I had that action was to be taken
that morning. There 1s nothing of importance to relate with
regard to our stay at Liberty H&ll}and about twentf minutes after
our arrival there we formed up in a pﬁoeessicn and moved along
the Queys, feeling as if I were walking on atr. Samewhere along
the Quays Paddy King, our Quartermaster, asked me to take ovﬁr
charge of his section, and later Peadar Bracken came to me and
showed me an order by James Connolly sayimé "we are to take over
the two houses at the bridge - Hopkins & Hopkins and Kellys".
Bracken said he would take over Kellys and I was to take over
Hopkins, Near the brldge I fell out of the ranks, followed
by a number of men, and rushea over towards Hopkins' corner.

The main body proceeded around the corner, into 0'Connell Strest.

It was many years laﬁér that I'iearned that when
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Peadar Bracken gave me the order to occupy Hopkins & Hopkins.
I wes ipso facto made a Llieutenant in charge of the asecond

half of Bracken's Company?

The Garrison had bedn formed that morming ad hoc as far
as I ever knew, into two Companies. I was not then aware of
this arrangement, nelther was the rest of "my" half Canpany
apparently, and so only a section followed me when I fell out
of the ranks at the bridgs. I had been marching in f%ont all
the way fram Liberty Hell ,and, not having any responsibility
till the last exciting mament, I have no ides who the men were

- who were behind me in the sectlon or the Canpany.

The reault of all thils was that only the first line of
four Volunteera remalned to taeke over ocur allotted position:-
Cormac Turner, Seumas Lundy, another Volunteer and myself,
The Other Volunteer melted away later to the G.P.0.

The entry into Hopkins provided a problem. It had heavy
ateel shutters which I discovered when I struck them with an axe,
As I consldered they would give us good protection when inside
I was anxious to effect an entry wlthout destroying them. We
thought of obtaining a ladder and for this purpose what remained
of the section went in search of one leaving me alone at the
corner., My attention was drawn to a D.M.P, man obviougly in a
hurry caning from the direction of Liberty Hall. I held him up
in order to prevent him giving the news of our activities and
almost at onee I noticed a body of cavalry alst; caning from the-
direction of Liberty Hall. I looked around for same members.
of my sectlion but they were atill searching for the ladder and
I wag all alone at the corner. I backed around into 0'Connell
8treet and laih.dGWn in the roadway near the footpath and
trained my shot gun whilch was loaded with buck shot, on the
corner, The cavalry appeared at_tha corner and just then a
motor cer with a civilian pesssenger drew up to the Qfficer-in-
charge of the cavalry. He was obviously explaining to the
officer that samething was happening further up 0'Connell Street.
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and urging the officer to talie some action. The officer,
however, seemed to indicate that he had an escort duty on hands
end eventually he proceeded on his way past the bridge to
Bachelors ¥Walk and un the Quays where he was later attacl:ed by
the Garrison at the Four Courts who by that time were in

position. |

‘I returned to Hopkine and Dbroke into a hall door of the
house next to Hopkins on the Quay side. On entering this hall
door I found that Seumas Lundy and Cormac Turnar'were already
inside. From the first floor of this house we bored through
the wall into Honkins making ihe agperture as Bmall. as nossible.
We barricaded the lower floor of Hopkins with whatever furniture
was available and made a renersel inspection of the oremises.

The roof we found was useless as a firing point as it gave no

LY

nrotection whatever.

We could hear shouting and cormotion coming lrom
0'Connell Street but we etlll had no idea as to what was
happening therve. we opened the windows of Hopkins and took up
our positions at them. Some time later a messenger came to us
and from him we sgot some ldea as to what was hannening, We told
him to bring word to the G, P.0. that we were only three men and
required reinf'orcamnents. WO new meh eventually arrived -
Andy Fitzoatrick and Andy Conroy, both members of the (Qitizen
ATTY . A:third Citlzen Aray man arrived later. I do not
recollect his neme but he was the only one of our Gerrison of
six who had a service rifle, Lundy, Turner and myself belng
ammed with shot guns, and Pltzpatrick and Conroy with small
arms. We had also & falr sunply of home-made grenedes.
Ebthi?g happened nmch on llonday evening axecept a visit from a
éumann na mBan with tea. |
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8. Tuesday.
On Tuesday morning there was some shooting in our

vieinlty and we came to the concluaion that it was ;::.ming fram
MeBirney 's. I noticed that at one of the windows in
HicBirney's the figure of a girl or what appeared to be a girl
used appear for a few moments and then go. Always after her
appearan;e gome shooting was heard and I concluded that she was
eithe? gpotting for the gunner or was "herself' doing the
shooting. On one occasion after her disappearance I fired

at the window where she had been. She did not appear any more.

Early in the morning we started to drill through the
walls of Hopkins down towards Abbey Sireet. We reached the
D.B.C., found that the walls were to¢ thick to bore through
and also that volunteers had been boring up towards us.

We arranged a platform on the first floor at the rere of the
building and by this means established communicastion with the
Irish Volunteers further down. Some time during this day

I went to the G,P. 0. and saw George Plunkett. I pointed out
to him that we weré under garrisoned and without proviasions.
He told me that there w&S no men to spare. I returned to
Hopkine and found that the Garrison had been doing same
foraging and had obtained provisions, principally, I think,
from the D,B.C. There was firing going on at this siage,

gradually becoming heavier.

8, Wednesday. -

My first recollection of Wednesday was hearing the sound
of artillery fire and with the did of a home-made periscope we
saw & boat in the river just bpeyond the railway bridge shelling
Liberty Hall. I weni; to the G.FP.0. and reported this to
George Plunkett. I had some conversation with my comrades of
the Kimmage Garrison in the G, P, 0. but the only thing which
remaing in my memory 13 the large collection of rumours which

were afloat at the time. They were t0 the effect that the
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whole country was in arms, that the British had suffered
heavy casualtles and that the Germans had landed and were
marching on Dublin, etec. I returned to Hopkins, Rach time
I had to crosa 0'Connell §treet under heavy machine-gun fire,

The crossings were made in quadruple quick time!

10. Thursday. -
Early on Thursday morning word csame to us that Connolly

had ordered the evacuation of our block. I went to the D, B.C.
to confirm this as it seemed to me to be most unjustified.

The off'icer-in-charge of the B,B,C. was a young Volunteer
Lieutenant. T do not know who he was. The man who brought
the order was there and I questioned him on it. He maintained
that that was the order which Connolly had given him to bring
to us. T told the Irish Volunieer Lleutenant that I did not
like to evacmnate the position without some confirmeation.

He, however, said he would obey the order and indicated to me
that it was my duty to do the same. Hot knowing my own real
rank at that time'I regarded him as being my superior, so

I agreed. We accordingly set out for the a.P, 0., uevaauatiz:;g
the block at the Hibernian Bank in Abbey Street, down .ah'be‘;,r
Street into Marlborough Street and so into Horth Earl Street.
From Horth Eerl Street corner we rushed across indi'c;idually
around the far side of the Pillar. There were sbout ten or
fifteen of us in this group. There was hea;n.r ms.cl?ine—gun and
rifle fire coming down O'Connell Street from the ﬂ;.rEcLiGIl ol
Westmoreland Street, Trinity College and McBirney's. However,
we crossed and entered the G.P.0. without as far ms I know sven
one casusalty. T weﬂt straight to George Plunkett and told him
that Irriid I:mt think we should have been ordered t0 evacuate the
position, He brought me to James Connolly in the main hall.
Connolly sald that the only order which wes sent was for an
Irish Volunteer sniper on the roof of the D,B.C. to evacuate
that position, which was reported to be dangerous. Connolly

then appointed andy Conroy (whom Connolly knew personally) to
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take charge of a party and re-occupy the whole block of
buildings from Hopkins to the Hibernian Bank. I was a member
of thlis party which numbered about twenty men. The only oather
pergon in the party whom I can now remember epart from Conroy,
was Frank Scullin, We returned the way we had ég;g into

Ilortn Earl Street and into liariborough Strest. However, as we
got into Marlborough Street, machine-gun fire was ovened on us
from a new British post. They must have moved closer when they
gpotted our evacuation. We rushed up Marlborough Street to get
into the shelter of Abbey Street. A man in front of me fell
and I had t0 legp over him to avoid falling. Then I realised
that he had been hit and turned back to assist him. It was
Frank Scullin. He sald to me, "For God's seke, get in out of
the rain'. ‘I'm alright, 1t's only in the leg!. The machine-
gun was s8till firing but not in my direction. “Bven at that
manent I got the impression that the gunne? was respecting my
efforts to help a wounded comrede and had trained his gun
elsewhere. Frank crouched into a hallway in Marlborough
Street and I rushed on into Abbey Street and back into the
Hibernlian Bank. There was no firing in Abbey 8treet just then.

Back inside, Conroy sald I would .have to return to the
G, P, 0. for more reinforcements. Quite a number of those who
lTef't the G.P.0. with us didn't reach our nost. What happened
them I do not know. Firing had now become very heavy.
A machine-gun post in Tara Street ond Trinity College and
WMeBirney's, and snipers all round were engaged in heavy firiﬁg.
4t the back also in Haﬁ}hnraugh Street there appeared to be
heavy Lfiring going on. I pointed out to Conroy that we had
only just come from the G.P,0,, that there was 1lltitle likelihood
of our gething reinforcements and that if I succeeded in running
the gauntlet again back to the G.P.0. I would ask to be retained
there. He did not insist and we re-occupied our positions in
Hopkins. With me at this stage at Hopkins were the Irish
Volunteer Lieutenant and Conroy himself, i
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Artillery fire was now coming close to us and Kellys
opposite had been hit by shells - I think on the iJednesday.
Hopkins itself was receiving very heavy machine-gun and rifle

fire to ,which we were unable to renly with the arms we had.

A few hours after our return to.Hopkins, word came again
thet we were to evacuate our positions and this time the order
appeared to be Justified with fires creeping up in our rere.

In view of the heavy firing at our rere ¢ a %" : point blank
range, we decided to evacuate directly across 0'Connell Street.
Conroy and the Irish Volunteer Lieutenant entered 0'Connell
Street a few doors down framn Hopkins. corner, and keeping close
to the buildings, moved down towards Abbey Sireet. A machine-
gunner, however, opened fire on them, They wheeled left and
dashed directly across 0O'Connell Street. I saw Conroy lieap
into the air, He had obviously been hit but he contimied to
run and reach the shelter of the houses at Manfields corner
where I lost sight of them. I myself, dashed out of the same
hall deor and directly acrosa the street. I was half waj
over before the mashine—gunners‘openad up: On me. However,

I reached the ghelier of Abbey Street and made my way through
the passage-way fram Abbey Street into Prince's Street_and so
into the G, P. 0. This would be late on Thursday evening.

1i. Friday.

My firat task in the G.P.0. was to cbtain some food as it
was many hours since we had eaten. A Cumann na mBan provided
me with some. My next ailm was to get some sleep as since
Sunday night sleep had been out of the question except for an
occasional shour. I was uttedy exhasusted at this time and
I got five ﬂbura' sleep from 7 p.m. till midnight when I went
on guard. My néxt recollection is of finding myself in
Manf'ields corner. I cannot now say how I got ithere. It mst
have bheen through the lletropole Hotel. Ap far as I can
recollect thie was early on Fridsy morning. There was a
number of Volunteers on the ground floor in Manflelds.
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Two of them I knew - Martln and Joe Gleeson. There
was a side door into Abbey Street and there were two young
Volunteers on guard at it. There was heavy cannonading,
machine-gun and rifle fire, Abhey Street was being swept by
£ire. Suddenliy there wes a clatter of feet running across
the street, followed by very heavy knocking on the ocutside of
this door. The young Volunteers, fear.ng, I presumns, a
British attack through the door, retreated. I celled on
Martin and Joe (Gleeson to stand by me and I Jumped across the
sand-bags barricading the inslde of the dpa: and challenged
the person who was knoekling on the dﬁgk. He replied,
"a Volunteer, let me in". I opened the door and found that
it wase James Connolly wha—wgs—outoivtec. I cannot explain why
he was there and he did not appear to be injured. He gave
me a lecture because of'my* delay in cpening the door and I had
to explain that I had not been on duty there and that it was
only hy chance that I happened to be at the door. Connolly

then went across the room and chatted with the ftwo Gleeaons.

The heavy artillery and other fire were going on =11
this time. I was not on duty at any spot and was merely
wandering around the bulldings. I had been up from madnight
on guard duty at a window and wes entitled, I thought, to a
respite. I found my way back into the G.P, 0. aaue time gbout
midday on Priday. The houses on the opposite side of
0'Connell Street were all on fire and one huilding completely
caved in. It was at this time that I remember the first
shells hitting the roof of the G, P, 0. They were incendiary
shells and despite the efforts of some of the Garrison to
conlrol the fire with hose pipes, the fire spread and more
ahells'were landing on the roof. Rifle bullets were coning
through the windows and pinging on the walls. I could see
Volunteers with rifles dodging up and down at the windows
looking for opportunities to fire at the enemy who seemed very
near, Thaséfggemed to expect and hope the enemy would try to
rush the building; they were alert, vibrant. "Red lightning
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vVolunteers were called for to remove explosives fram
the main hell t0 a cellar or room downstairs. I was one
of the volunteers engaged on this work. I cannot
recollect the names of the others. I didn't know them and
had no time to notice. We brought the explosives to a
lower room and lald a fuse where the fire would catch and
explode the material after the buildins was vacated.
When we had finished this work we found that the
evacuation of the building was now alinost canplete, and
I, va th some others, evacuated the G,P.0. from a slde door

in Henry Street straight across into Henry Place,

We made our way up Henry Place and around to the
opening into Moore Lane. There was heavy machine-gun
fire from a 3ritish post caning down Mﬁﬁre Lane and one of
our own machlne-guns was replying to it. During a lull
we dashed across the mouth of Moore Lane and entered the

corner house at ikloore Street by a slde door.

This house was full of Irish Volunteers. I got a
large jug and filled it with water and went around giving
drinka to whoever needed them. I entered one room and
saw James Connolly lying on a stretcher. He appeared to
be very cheerful and waived his hand to me, saying,
"Hello, Townie,"- the (leesons had evidently told him who
I was. This was the first time I knew ihat Connolly had

been wounded.

There was a call for volunteers {o bore through the
buildings we now occupied, and I was one of the party.
#e were using a very lafge crowber, and each man would take
his turn at the bar for a few mimites and then stop to
rest, & fresh man taking his place. During one of my
snellas of rest I léy Tflat down on the floor awaiting my
turn to work the crowbar and fell fast agleen.

n
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Then I awoke 1t was completely dark and everything was
quiet. I was utterly exhausted and, feeling around the
darkened room, I came into contact with a vacant bed. I rolled

into bed and again fell fast aaleep.

When I awoke the next time it was daylight. There were

sounds of firing some distance away. I got up and moved

9.\ through the buildings towards an end houss. T.hera wgfa) a
mumber of Volunteers there, including George Plunkett. We could
gee g British barricade nearby. A party was lined up to rush
the barricade when orders casme that we were not to fire on any
Britieh soldiers until further orders. I think it was
Sedn McDermott who brought this order to us,e&mI think it was
8eén HMeGloughlin,who had a yellow band signifying Commandent

rank, that spread the order.

Shortly afterwards we heard that the surrender had been
arranged and we were eventually formed up in the yard of the
house by George Plunketitt and marched out into Moore Street and aso
into 0'Connell Street. 80 confused is my min\i gbout this perioad
that I cannot remember whether we went up to Pa.rneiil Street and
into O0'Connell Street, or down into Henry Street and so into
0'Connell Street. We were kept in 0'Connell Street in formation
and surrendered our arms. We were then moved up and herded into

the Rotunda Gardens where we spent the night.

15. Sunday.
On Sunday we ware marched to Richmond Barracks and were

lodged in a large Gymnasium. We were passed individually
through an Interrogation Room, and & number of us were lodged
in parties in large barrack rooms, the rest deported that night.
In my roam were PAdraig O MAille, Joseph Gleeson, Joseph Derham,
Seumas Mallin, M. W. O'Rellly, Barney Mellows, Frank Fahy,
Major McBride and, I think, A. P. Reynolds. I remained in
Richmond Barracks for about a week and was then deported to
Stafford Jail, Frdgouhg -amd:on 4QReeAiRg.
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AN ADVENTUROUS CYCLE R]IIDEr

(By Senator Seamus Raobinson,
0/C, South Tigpemr} EBrizade,
IR A, 1918-"22, and then 0/C i
2nd Southern Disision ).
HORTLY after the Solohcad-
beg ambush of January 21,
1919, when Dan Breen, Sean
Treacy, Scan Hogan and myself — ———
{of the South Tipperary Brigade,
Inish Republican Army) were “on
the run” we were awakened out
of our sleep one might m Mrs
Boland » house, in Dublin, by the
sound of tramping fookstops and

loud »oices on the stairs
The leader oo the wvading party was

Michael Colins  who explalned Lhot
they bod moade = pood nome to show
l._hc}r were friends—a wise precaution
The soumd of Alealthy  footsleps was
always the slgnol for us to Eot ewn
guns In case of surphac by the enemy
Michk soon let us know the ohject of
Fun wisit aaying Get up at onee vou
ure to ambush Lord French ' At firat
we thought he was joking but he ex-
plalned that he had recefved waord that
Lord French was to drbve to Dubln
Castle at & oclock the following morm-
ng

S0 Trene, Hogan and ¥ ook up our e
posilion i Church  Lane off Dome
strest oe witing the coming of Lord
Prench  trying  neanwhile io fellow — . f
our msirgcoen. Lo keep on the move
ict remaun on the spol—nol a very
vuy thing Lo do AL ihfferent points
all adong the roule men (rom all paris
of ithe country, who had come o
Duldin for an Army Contention, were o —
atotioned, some of whom were te toke i
part i the attack and others who
were 1o wover Lhe retreat of Lhe ~
attackers

But Lord Crench neser came wna |
we learncd alterwards that ewr anfor- [
mation was wrong and thal he had na |
miention of passng  theough  Damc
Street thal moenleg Thomas MacCur
twin  Iater the Lord Major of Cork
was w lh us that mormng aml 1 re-
member his sayong Lo me aftervords
that the oniy good thing aboul Lhe
ambush was that he was given o re-
volver, which he Fad not been able to
ket beforoe

Lord Freach scemed to have bad o _
churmed fe and although plans were
made tater Lo willnop him and hold bl
s hostage for Eamon de Valora ——
Fresident of the Repubhc who was
then in prison he was alweys able Lo
shp through cur aands

ALHTOWN

wome ume buforce the Ashluwh
imbush 1 wos present al a mecting |
ol the Active Servee Unils, drawn
Iromy the warlous hattaltons anl nee-
siled  ower hy Dick Muilcaky He —_—
explained 10 w3 that we would mve Lo
carry out aclive warfare n osuely @,
way Lhal there would be no casualitng —
on cur =ule, Lhot 18 to say, that there
was 1o be note of our mwn lulled or
tiken prisororg He snld this was
heceasary  bocnuse  the  Gosvertment
was anwicus thae oo guhtary  action
should be traced to its nuthority or to
the TR A and thatl of an attack cauld
be teaced to the TRA they might And
I. feccssary 1o jcpudiate us Mr de '
Yafera ba l notinne 1o do with tins de- |
tision bemz me gasl ot the Lim

“We acoopted these lerms althowge b '
they npenel up very unpleasant [l 1
sthiliting e us o we would then e
cida ved by ke rallsh repusdiated b
aur ouwn Gosertmont ool alse nughi
suffer the censure of The Church

On Frulay Lhe 19th Dweember j900
the party drwe trom Lhe A S U o1 Lhe
varesus  baltaliony o oancludmg Dap — — - =
Brees Trepcy  Hlognn  and oy sels
amd  numborng o all clewen men
proceded Lo Ashtown 1o coery oul the
atlach an the Viesroy  Our infurm -
Loh was that Loed Fronch would come
Iy trawm te Ashtown  ab 1140 am
il Lhat ne waulil not B oon Lo Broad-
slone bud woulit ave the teun there
i olre el By omeor Lo the Vaceregal
Lalie

W rode oul e Calna RRead an our ——e— -
biewclis ciohng v by tag amed 1 re
memhcr that Marlul %a age sang ot
e v among lue aongs helag H
steldver & Tl Lhe bife for me o solidiee < I
sleith, 8o Ireloed 8 Tree

BARRICAIMMNG TIHE ROAD
Arrnved al Kelly s public house Ash-

Lown, whuch stands aboutl twe hundred _,_,___—l

¥irla from Ashiown Stalion, amd ahout

100 yards fram the Phaoms Park gEaLo

fuddy Daly who was in command of - m e

the parly gave us our mnatrucbions A :

largy body o1 men slanding abeul the

ror:l would be sure Ln alteact alten-




tlon, 80 we were Lo go into the publle-
house, and mingling with the cus-
Lomers, ordor saome mincrals as tf we
were cyclists passing along (he romd

Shortly before the tramn was duc Lo
arrive, we were Lo ling the eslde of |
the hedge on the righl hond skde of tho!
road for mboul thirly sards  Breen,
Martin Savage and Tom Keogh were
te  barpemde the romd at the Iast
momant  hv depwing oo ocounlry oact

which atooml by ncross the path of the
comung rers Thes had o be dene 0
order to slow down Lhe apeed of the
cars  whielh alwnys trovelled ot on
termflc rale  Breen amd los tv o com

rades badl Lo de tlwa with an sir of
innocence or stupility  bocouae 00 they
loolesl too busineas hie about it Lhey
might rouse the suspiowond of some of
the people in the publiv house

A PROPOSAL

Neahsing that Dal, muzht not have ~

giom oool obscderp LoD al Ll
eleventh hour w a proposal T had
made Lo kim T made up my mind that
I wonld withbold my bomb anbd afier
Lhe secomd car was deall wath T ol
Wath  abzalule certoonmey  Lal of  this
precaution were not iehen our whole

netion mught be mareed by Bicidsy _

caqualites on our swde and ouwr instric-
tigna from CHQ were thal ne were
Lo avorl casnaiiley
DMI" MAN INTERIERES

The eora were starting from {he ata
ton The time had come for the romwl
party to get anle aclwon amd  Lhey
hegan alowly toe pull the country carl
across Whe road Lo Dock the way of
the viceregal parts  Wlhle Uy v ory
domng this a LMFP man appeared
alcddenly on e scene il Lakng our
harriciglers fan counlesmen eng~gol

The usual order in whch the Vige-
repal porty travelled was Leat e molor
car carrping  Lord Crenck s armed
eacort, then ithe cnr o wiolh Loed
Freoeh aat and then anotlier carrying

o their ware hegan oo argbe wath
chiem Ahal ithey could pol g ther
cart Lhal war  Fogreng stupndity and
ohsbinacy arl not wanng o huse o
wussle wilth Lhe policeman our men
lriecd Lo carey on wildh their duty  bul
the poligeman  esplaonang that  the
passnge rnsk be hept clear for s
Excellencys enuld nal b persasded
by move

AL s puunl one a8 our parly sol-
iled dThe argument by theaswin, b

“E% ATOR SELYAS LDBINSO™S

the rest of e escort Daoly Instruciesd
ug not Lo attack the flirst car

The looh-outs hrought us v ord thal
the train wius mgnglled ond we moved
quictly and gqulckly to cur ailolted

'_ posts along the ansule o1 (he hedge
I heoping out of ekt Inoorder to pre-
"vemt enihsn  cwsuallios, men wero
I placed at the cross roads whoso duty
it was to prevent people walking into
Lour_tange of flﬂ:_

onls madsile e had at the policeman,
namely o bt i eourge Jae hadl

—_—— ——— Inab drawn the pin frome the homb sg

thal thrre was noodanser of 1t explod-

nE wnl anagurimg Bime oor e ot
T Thes  surprise [LANTHIY
threwe  the puliceman imin coslitsion

hut  wlan conig el ou Tartmwaling
| gLy i abmast a1 tbL =meae
mement Ul v orey 2 ¢ s oot Nt
[ TR

Thy cirs Loams ooy Corslhee e [
bd hopedd aned imineibately the awton
homan ANl of a1y rmen R memerng
thewr matruchiony  concentr sbadd  dhoir
altuck on the sicond car o whuch
Larl  ronck was  thought o he
traveflng 1 howesver  sacle sk pped
oridets and  waiting untll e second
car had  heen bombed ool of wetwon
hurled my homb al tke nrsd car Wit
effect my bomb had | never heard wilh
any  corlammty  hul Lhe car houmds o

awal, erasbang pas' the shight barerl

b

s



eade 1t woa discovered aficrwards thHat

contrary to

Hreen was very weal from 103 o1
the ususl custom, Lord !h!ol:m. and his leg was uselesy so (hAL

French was seated In the first, i.n.ut.cad__:ne cow'd neiher walk nor cycle hy

of in the second car Inmsell He was helped on Lo his
Taewele  poed Paddy  D2aly, ruding his

CASUALTIES pun hicvele and supporling Bresn on
Immedistely aftor bombing [ rushed the olher staited on @ diffeenit and
to the end of (he lne. at the main 1= ilous jourpey tn rench the house of

ropd, our weak fank, where Dan
Ereen, Martin Soavage and, I think,
] Keozh were standing without cover 1

wiis anm<lous
,

. Mrs Tooney of Phoabkshorouph Later
wa  lexenced  that  Daly wmidl Frank

Thernlen and olhers got our wounded
1o make sure that there

b—— - —— - - - comrade there o salfety but il was- - -— - =
would be no enfilading of our lines more than n month betore Jrecn was
Nogsthe third car, the rear of the able Lo Mot e aboul withoul assistance
———__ cscorl” came dashing along ab e furk- L non qe the remainder of our — - —
ous pace bumping over and pushing party weie sofely awas  Froacy mrulb |
amde obstacles on  the road, the jumped op our icyeles anil siartod to
e __ gecupnnls proparcd te defend ther o - -lade At lop apced from Ashiown for —— —— —— —
charge wath thewr lives  This was un e hnow that the dislmet woull snon
opem far 113 firc teal o1l of our ve omarming with Uritsh shilery )
- - — party . —_— sem lang tor the 017 A Wi ovelal - B
In by back o lhe war Slood @ alomp o path o coase we shouhl mect
soldrer, wilh s lega Lroced belwecn with 4 mil 1y lorry or armed mor o L
_ - the sculs T: |1P11|-_!C1{:1'[L':ml1a1:::‘;mu.:3 :i:: T evelist as b weuld Be casier tor us
::‘gmhll!uel:a:n:; workmg evcnly, almodt t.hl'l' vay F{ﬂ'. Herosd w e dge and
gracefulls  on the holi and Lngger through Lhe bebis e case of af s ——- -
This soldier wa4 #  sharp-shaoter Lounisr
Hrs st shot gate vouny Martin Sin. BOHRROWED MACHINL : ~ ——
. al*-!" h'i‘;f:f:n:ﬁu::l 1:_21:?‘:1'1‘;] ::;T Unforiunalcly | hod hardiy umerl]
throug . 'I:Lu-rl - chl}n i the “:E' when one af my pedals atrgek o stonge [
- - - — at ‘_h" t e ] Come Gdf w0 Lhirowng iy evcle s - - - m—— =
wounding lm serlousl Brecn, now mer 4 hedge 1 pol on the beck of
oul of actlon  bhmped painfully to
jeover n the publle-house deor and a Treacy = e The bumgung 'l'-"i'rr . .
1| i } - anli —enrs 1 el Tortunntoly for me slnncs !.'I'Iri.‘lt e prj:“!.“- 110“.h an _Lh.-_,
cnme tlong Uie mmn read at Lus me- rear mdguond and Trency soon found
ment  provided cover from which o he would e Me progress  Luckiy —
? EEE— conUinne Ui e altace 1 was sorry for  TuF Bs % man come o ves  wheel |
that slkman  bul | bad nether the mp o heaml new machine and pehiely
udie nor the inclmat-on Lo conaller kg _ - hut nrmiy we teld Jum thal we wonld —_ . -
- T N peint of view . have Lo borvow b Teom i foc A (e
rae  weoml cor Nhad  been badly htrurs He was sery mdignant il
;__ dumaged by our fre oond conld noty o abvionshy tld nol Tehese me when [ e e —
procerd any tarther and asthia com proumised Lthal e would e el for him
rades hasl Ned  teavikg him  to aur nl v werlmn plege wmd al o conlamn
—_ — o ._ merey, the soltior who had boen driv hewr that evering 1 heard wfter- - —_——— == -— -
{ tng it v alked ont with s handa up warda {hal thea man o wois oan 110
. The ambash was over  All our parts pensienel The Lescls was  Baruled
- e ——— - camc UL on the mam roed awd the — over to the Dubhn & S U o return it “mm T T T
, soldice was diwarmed  He was tremb- a5 hest thev ooull
g aml eadently  etpected  tno he Witk the unwiling help of Lhat ox-
- - shol, hat we trosisl him with wery -— - - pehiceman 1 wad able o rosume my ) o -
courlesy  He wag obvously surprised JediFney anka Losp with Sean Troacy !
. and reberet when some one Had ' We aml al last we armsed ab Lyncha, 0 O 0 _ . _;
Tt raro soldwers oo and do not shoot ung - Dolghin s b | Thinking at the tme
' rmed prisoners Lt Freen wonld be in Grantham St
ON BMCRCLES —————— where his o ”'”"-‘q]”-'-fl Wil sk et g - - =
Savape had been loiled  outright, AL amee 10 V1 Heyleshury streel  our
shol through the throat by the sharp- Dulhn HQ  for tear of denwing Log
- —  ghaole=  Ave  dobated  whether ve mich allention e the disthicl After -
should tadee W3 hody swey vath us, o R amed shave we went oul o em-
1 but 11 was decded that b would be Joy the sensabion’ caused by the atlack o
———————— — pyqpossibic ol thit Ume 65 we had T — on the Vicerow Moy sonn s dd tome-
\ ahly bioveles, and we had a wounded oirs were eirculating through Dublin
' man te brng lo safety  Treacy and and we whe had heen on thy spot .
I remamed belond thie othera untd = radly beheved 1hal Lord §rench and
Hroen wan gol awnl s cor hod been Diov o Lo bits ol Ash-
o _ —_— _town 1 am qure that he wae ms de- - - - —
- T LgRted aa we wefe disappointed that
thia wns nolL really the ense kot '
: - ———  olthough the acuén was not sueeess ——=— - ——-———— —

ful v ene woy ’ﬁ certiinlv cauwamd a4
panie §n Gritish Goveriment circlea
=

+ =T —_- . ———



